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PART 1 – BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION 

 

  1 - Business 

 

(a) Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc. (hereinafter to be referred to as "Company" or "KPH") 

was incorporated in July 1975 under the former name of Keppel Philippines Shipyard, Inc.  

The Company was established as a subsidiary of Keppel Corporation Limited (KCL) of 

Singapore to carry out ship repair and shipbuilding activities in the Philippines.  In 1993, the 

Company was converted into an investment holding company under the name of Keppel 

Philippines Holdings, Inc.  KPH shares are being traded at the Philippine Stock Exchange 

(PSE).  

 

Currently, KPH has two core businesses: namely, investment holdings and real estate.   

  

(b) The Company is not involved in any bankruptcy, receivership, or similar proceedings. 

 

(c) There is no material reclassification, merger, consolidation, purchase, or sale of a significant 

amount of assets not in the ordinary course of business. 

 

(d)  The Company does not have any patents, trademarks, licenses, franchises, concessions, 

and/or royalty agreements.  

 

(e)   As an investment holding company, KPH has six (6) regular employees in 2021 and 2020 

and five (5) regular employees in 2019.  There is no collective bargaining agreement 

between the Company and the employees. 

 

(f) Brief Description of Business  

 

 KPH has two main business segments: Investment Holdings and Real Estate.  The 

contribution from each segment of the businesses to the consolidated revenues and net income 

of the Company is stated in Note 17 of the audited financial statements. 

 

 Real Estate 

 

KPH as Parent Company owns office space at Fedman Suites, while KPSI Property, Inc. 

(KPSI), a wholly owned subsidiary of KPH, owns and leases out the office spaces in Country 

Space 1 Building at Makati City.  Goodwealth Realty Development Corp. (GRDC), 51% 

owned by KPH, owns and leases parcels of land in Batangas City.  Goodsoil Marine Realty, 

Inc. (GMRI), wholly owned by GRDC and effectively 51% owned by KPH, owns and leases 

the land in Bauan, Batangas to Keppel Philippines Marine Inc. (KPMI) used for the 

construction and repair of all types and classes of vessels, the fabrication of offshore marine 

structures together with the related services and operations of a shipyard. GMRI is registered 

as an Ecozone Developer/Operator with the Philippine Economic Zone Authority (PEZA) 

since 2007.  Consort Land, Inc. (CLI), 25% owned by GMRI and effectively 13% owned 

by KPH, owns and leases the land in Subic, Zambales to Keppel Subic Shipyard, Inc. (KSSI) 

used for the construction and repair of all types and classes of vessels and the fabrication of 

offshore marine structures. CLI is registered with PEZA as an Ecozone Developer/Operator 

of the Subic Shipyard-Special Economic Zone and distribute power to its locators.      
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2 - Properties 

 

The Company owns the following properties: 

 

Owned by Property Description Area 

KPH Two (2) office condominium units at Fedman 

Suite in Makati City 

 

    166 sqm 

KPSI  Two (2) office condominium units and five (5) 

parking slots at Country Space I Building in 

Makati City 

 

   

345 sqm 

GRDC Five (5) lots of residential land in Batangas City    1,500 sqm 

GMRI Land located in Bauan, Batangas  249,584 sqm 

CLI Land and building located in Subic, Zambales  840,043 sqm 

 

The properties owned by the Company and its subsidiary and associates are free from any lien. 

 

3 - Legal Proceedings 

 

On 2 June 2021, the Company sold its land rights in a 10.4 has. property located in Bauan, 

Batangas to a non-related company.  The property is the subject of an ongoing case in the 

Regional Trial Court in Batangas.  As part of the conditions of the sale, the necessary motions for 

substitution were made in court to replace the Company with the buyer as the new plaintiff. 

 

4 - Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders 

 

There were no matters submitted to a vote of security holders during the third and fourth quarter 

of the fiscal year covered by the report.  The last meeting of the Company’s stockholders was the 

annual stockholders’ meeting, which was held on 18 June 2021. 

 
 

PART II – OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION  

 

5 - Market Price of and Dividends on Registrant’s Common Equity and Related   

Stockholder Matters 

 

(a)  Market Information 

 

The principal market of the Company’s common equity is the Philippine Stock Exchange 

(PSE) where it was listed on 26 August 1987.  The high and low closing prices for each 

quarter within the last two (2) fiscal years and first quarter of 2022 as traded at the Philippine 

Stock Exchange are as follows: 

 

 

STOCK 

PRICES 

          

            2021 

 

           2020 

 High Low High Low 

First Quarter ‘A’ P6.00 ‘A’ P4.63    ‘A’ P5.50  ‘A’ P4.00 

    ‘B’ P6.22     ‘B’ P4.00 ‘B’ P6.80 ‘B’ P5.50 

Second Quarter ‘A’ P5.94 ‘A’ P4.25 ‘A’ P5.50 ‘A’ P4.68 

 ‘B’ P4.31 ‘B’ P4.31 ‘B’ P6.00 ‘B’ P5.19 

Third Quarter ‘A’ P6.96 ‘A’ P5.00 ‘A’ P5.11 ‘A’ P4.82 

 ‘B’ P6.20 ‘B’ P4.90 ‘B’ P4.68 ‘B’ P4.68 

Fourth Quarter ‘A’ P6.40 ‘A’ P5.96 ‘A’ P7.21 ‘A’ P3.51 

 ‘B’ P6.12 ‘B’ P5.99 ‘B’ P6.21 ‘B’ P3.30 
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            2022 

 High Low 

          First Quarter ‘A’ 7.04 ‘A’ P6.12 

 ‘B’ P8.08 ‘B’ P8.00 

      

(b)  Holders 

 

The number of shareholders of record as of 31 December 2021 was 420. 

 

Common shares outstanding as of 31 December 2021 were 57,342,419 broken down as 

follows: 

 

 

 

The top 20 stockholders as of 31 December 2021 are as follows: 

 

  
 

Shareholder 

No. of 

Shares Held 
% 

1. Kepwealth, Inc. 30,532,930 53.247 

2. Keppel Corporation Limited 16,894,087 29.462 

3. PCD Nominee Corp. – Filipino 6,489,825 11.318 

4. International Container Terminal Services, Inc,   2,121,287 3.699 

5. PCD Nominee Corp. – Foreign     544,974 0.950 

6. Soh Ngoi May        83,179 0.145 

7. Willy Y. C. Lim       60,175 0.105 

8. Edbert G. Tantuco       50,017 0.087 

9. Emilio C. Tiu       23,238 0.041 

10. National Book Store, Inc.       22,422 0.039 

11. Ang Guan Piao       21,900 0.038 

12. Manolo Z. Alcasabas       21,170 0.037 

13. Willy Yew Chai Lim       20,085 0.035 

14. Yeo Chee Chiow       18,848 0.033 

15. Liwayway Sy      17,938 0.031 

16. Ma. Victoria R. Del Rosario      17,938 0.031 

17. Ramon R. Del Rosario Jr.      17,938 0.031 

18. Dr. Victorino Medrano Jr. &/or Ofelia R. Medrano       13,952 0.024 

19. Procurador General De Padres Franciscano de Manila      11,211 0.020 

20. Josefina Tengco Reyes       11,211 0.020 

 

 

(c)  Dividends 

 

The declaration and payment of dividends will depend, among others, upon the Company’s 

earnings, cash flow, capital requirements and financial condition in addition to other factors.  

Cash dividends are subject to approval by the Board of Directors (BOD) but no stockholders’ 

Nationality Class No. of Shares Percentage 

Filipino  A   35,826,670  62.48 

Filipino   B     3,858,476     6.73 

Foreign B   17,657,573  30.79 

                       Total   57,342,419  100.00 
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approval is required.  Dividends are payable to stockholders whose names are recorded in 

the stock and transfer books as of the record date fixed by the Board. The Company declared 

cash dividends in 2021, 2020 and 2019.  Details of cash dividend are as follows: 

 

 Y2021 Y2020 Y2019 

Date of BOD Approval June 18 June 19 June 21 

Record Date July 8 July 9 July 5 

Payment Date July 31 July 31 July 31 

Amount of Dividend per Share P0.10 or 10% P0.10 or 10% P0.10 or 10% 

           
  

(d) Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities 

 

There has been no sale of securities within the past three years which were not registered 

under the SRC.  Neither is there any claim for exemption from registration made by the 

Company. 

 

 

6 - Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

 

Results for the Year 

 

Year Ended 2021 

  

 Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc. (KPH) and its subsidiaries (the “Company”) recorded a net 

income of P269.2 million in 2021, P26.1 million in 2020, and P26.6 million in 2019.  The reasons 

for the changes in net income are as follows:  

The Company earned P345.6 million from the sale of land rights in a property in Bauan, Batangas 

in June 2021. The right was sold to a non-related third-party buyer for a gross price of P358.6 

million.  Cash deposit to the Supreme Court of P4.1 million, related legal expenses of P1.8 million, 

and commission expense of P7.2 million incurred and paid in 2021, were applied against the gross 

price resulting to net gain of P345.6 million.  

  

 Interest income earned by the Company comes from loans granted to related company and from 

short-term bank deposits.  The Company earned total interest income of P9.6 million in 2021, 

P12.1 million in 2020, and P18.3 million in 2019.  The interest earned from the loans granted to 

a related company amounted to P8.6 million in 2021, P11.3 million in 2020, and P16.5 million 

in 2019. The decrease in 2021 was due repayment of P10.0 million loan in 2021 and a significant 

drop in interest rates ranging from 3.1% to 3.8% per annum (p.a.) in 2021 as against 3.4% to 

4.9% p.a. in 2020 and 4.8% to 7% p.a. in 2019.  Interest rates are agreed upon with the related 

party on a comparable market rate basis on date of granting or renewal of the loan. While interest 

from short-term deposits amounted to P0.9 million both in 2021 and 2020 and P1.8 million in 

2019. The drop in interest on short-term deposits was also brought by the decrease in time deposit 

rates from 0.4% to 0.5% p.a. in 2021 as against 0.5% to 3.6% p.a. in 2020 and 3.8% to 5.3% p.a. 

in 2019. 

 

 Rental revenue for the year 2021 amounted to P9.1 million as against rental revenue of P33.3 

million and P28.5 million in 2020 and 2019, respectively.  The decrease was due to the 

termination of lease rental on properties in Bauan, Batangas to a third party in December 2020.  

Rental revenue from related party amounted to P9.1 million as against as against P10.7 million 

in 2020 and P13.2 million in 2019.   The decrease of P1.6 million from 2020 to 2021 and P2.5 

million from 2019 to 2020 was due to the concessions given to KPMI for the whole year of 2021 

and from March 15, 2020 to December 2020, respectively. This was due to difficult business 
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environment due to the COVID-19 pandemic which affected the operation of KPMI. The rental 

concession has been properly studied and justified to be within market practices. 

 

 The equity in net earnings of associate - CLI as of 31 December 2021 amounted to P6.7 million, 

as against P7.6 million and P8.9 million in 2020 and 2019, respectively.  Increase or decrease in 

equity in net earnings of associate depends upon the net income realized by CLI during the years.  

The Company received cash dividend from CLI amounting to P7.5 million, P8.7 million and 

P10.5 million in 2021, 2020, and 2019, respectively.  

 

 In February 2020, the Parent Company entered into a payroll service agreement with related 

companies with regards to the payroll system upgrade of the KPMI, KSSI and the Parent 

Company.  Payroll service fees earned for the year 2021 amounted to P3.6 million as against in 

2020 of P 1.1 million.  

 

 Management fees charged to related parties amounted to P0.8 million from 2019 to 2021.   

 

 Operating expenses amounted to P22.0 million, P24.9 million, and P27.8 million in 2021, 2020 

and 2019, respectively.  The increase in expenses was brought professional fees and outside 

services, depreciation, and repair and maintenance expense.  This was partially offset by lower 

salaries and benefits, contractual services relating to properties for rent, and recovery of 

impairment on creditable withholding tax.   

  

 The Company has unrealized fair value gain on financial asset fair value through other 

comprehensive income of P9.0 million in 2021, loss of P2.0 million in 2020 and gain of P2.0 

million in 2019.  The Company recognized gain of P2.0 million in 2021, loss in 2020 of P1.1 

million and gain in 2019 of P0.2 million on remeasurement of retirement benefits assets based on 

retirement actuarial retirement plan fund from 2019 to 2021.  

  

 Financial Condition 

 

The cash position of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021 amounted to P341.1 

million as against the same period last year of P80.4 million.  The increase of P260.7 million was 

from the proceeds from the sale of land rights in a property in Bauan, Batangas of P349.6 million, 

principal payment of loan of P10.0 million, interest received from short-term loans of P8.5 million 

and cash dividend received of P7.5 million. This was partially offset by payment of income tax 

relating to the sale of land rights of P56.9 million, cash dividend paid to shareholder of P15.7 

million, acquisition of office equipment and software of P1.7 million, and purchase of treasury 

shares of P1.7 million.    
 

Total receivables both current and non-current this year amounted to P272.5 million as against 

last year of P282.6 million. The net decrease of P10.1 million was due mainly to the repayment 

of loan by a related party amounting to P10 million.  

  

Other current assets increased from P0.4 million to P1.7 million this year.  The increase was due 

to higher creditable withholding tax, input VAT both net of provisions and prepaid expenses.  The 

P6.0 provision for doubtful accounts of creditable withholding tax in 2020 was fully applied 

against tax payment.   

 

Available-for-sale financial assets related to a quoted club share at fair value price as of December 

2021 and 2020 amounted to P44.0 million and P35.0 million, respectively.   

 

Investment in an associate decreased from P419.1 million in 2020 to P418.2 million this year.  

The net decrease was due to equity share in net income of CLI of P6.7 million reduced by the 

cash dividend received this year amounting to P7.5 million. 
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Investment properties, Property and equipment and Intangible assets – net of depreciation and 

amortization as of 2021 amounted to P212.9 million same in 2020.  Total acquisition of 

equipment and payroll application for the payroll system upgrade for the year amounted to P1.7 

million almost same amount of depreciation for the year. 

 

Total liabilities decreased from P11.8 million in 2020 to P4.9 million this year.  The decrease of 

P6.9 million was due to return of security deposits of P2.6 million, advance rentals of P0.5 

million, adjustment and payment of retirement liability of P1.7 million, decrease in tax payable 

of P0.1 million and net decrease in accrued operating expenses and other payables of P2.0 million 

 

Total equity as of 31 December 2021 amounted to P1,285.6 million and P1,022.7 million in 

December 2020.   Retained earnings amounted to P762.6 million as of December 2021 as 

compared to P503.7 million in December 2020.  The increase in retained earnings was due to 

higher net income after non-controlling interests of P264.6 million partially offset by cash 

dividend of P5.8 million.  The Company also had unrealized gain on fair value of financial asset 

at fair value through other comprehensive income of P9.0 million and remeasurement gain on 

retirement benefits P2.0 million. The Company also bought back its own shares amounting to 

P1.7 million. Non-controlling interest of minority shareholders also recognized P4.6 million share 

in the net income of the Company and received dividends of P9.9 million. 

 

The equity attributable to equity holders of the parent amounted to P928.2 million and P660.0 

million as of December 2021 and 2020, respectively.  The net book value per share as of 

December 2020 was P16.19 as against December 2020 of P11.45.  The earnings per share 

attributable to the equity holders of the parent as of December 2021 and 2020 were P4.61 and 

P0.35, respectively. 

 

Year Ended 2020 

  

 Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc. (KPH) and its subsidiaries (the “Company”) recorded a net 

income of P26.1 million in 2020, P26.6 million in 2019, and P14.2 million in 2018.  The reasons 

for the changes in net income are as follows:  

 

 Rental revenue for the year 2020 amounted to P33.3 million as against rental revenue of P28.5 

million and P22.7 million in 2019 and 2018, respectively.  Lease of properties to third parties 

contributed to the increase in rental revenue which amounted to P22.7 million in 2020, P15.3 

million in 2019 and P9.5 million in 2018. Rental revenue from affiliates amounted to P10.7 

million in 2020 as against P13.2 million both for 2019 and 2018.  The P2.5 million or 18.9% 

decrease in rental revenue from the affiliates was due to 25% rental rebates given to KPMI during 

the Community Quarantine period due to the COVID-19 pandemic from 16 March to 31 

December 2020. The rental rebate has been properly studied and justified to be within market 

practices. 

 

 The Company earned interest income of P12.1 million in 2020, P18.3 million in 2019, and P12.2 

million in 2018.  The interest earned from the loans granted to a related company amounted to 

P11.3 million in 2020, P16.5 million in 2019, and P10.7 million in 2018. The decrease in 2020 

was due repayment of P22.0 million loan in 2020 and a significant drop in interest rates ranging 

from 3.4% to 4.9% in 2020 as against the 4.8% to 7% in 2019 and 3.0% to 6.3% in 2018 and.  

Interest rates are agreed upon with related party on a comparable market rate basis on date of 

granting or renewal of the loan. The Company also earned interest from short-term deposits 

amounted to P0.9 million, P1.8 million, and P1.5 million in 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively. 

The drop in interest on short-term deposits was also brought by the decrease in time deposit rates 

from 0.5% to 3.6% in 2020 as against 2.75% to 5.25% in 2019 and 2.0% to 5% in 2018. 

 

 The equity in net earnings of associate - CLI as of 31 December 2020 amounted to P7.6 million, 

as against P8.9 million and P10.0 million in 2019 and 2018, respectively.  Increase or decrease 
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in equity in net earnings of associate depends upon the net income realized by CLI during the 

years.  The Company received cash dividend from CLI amounting to P8.7 million in 2020, P10.5 

million in 2019 and P8.7 million in 2018.  

 

 In February 2020, the Parent Company entered into a payroll service agreement with related 

companies with regards to the payroll system upgrade of the Parent Company, KPMI and KSSI.  

From February to December 2020, the total payroll service charges to KSSI and KPMI amounted 

to P0.6 million and P0.5 million, respectively.  

 

 Management fees charged to related parties amounted to P0.8 million from 2018 to 2020.   

 

 In 2018, the Company realized a gain on the sale of investment properties of P1.9 million from 

sale of its residential unit at Batangas City.  The proceeds received from the sale of properties 

amounted to P2.3 million. There was no sale of investment property in 2020 and 2019. 

 

 Operating expenses amounted to P24.9 million, P27.8 million, and P31.4 million in 2020, 2019 

and 2018, respectively.  The decrease in expenses was brought mainly by lower taxes and licenses 

paid to local government and lower professional fees and outside services. The decrease was 

offset by higher salaries and benefits, contractual services relating to properties for rent, and 

recovery of impairment on creditable withholding tax.   

  

 The Company has unrealized fair value loss on financial asset fair value through other 

comprehensive income of P2.0 million in 2020 as against fair value gain of P2.0 million in 2019 

and P15 million in 2018.  The Company also recognized P1.1 million and P0.2 million 

remeasurement loss on retirement benefits assets, net of tax, based on actuarial of retirement plan 

funded in 2020 and 2019.  

  

 Financial Condition 

 

The cash position of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020 amounted to P80.4 

million as against the same period last year of P50.7 million.  The increase of P29.7 million was 

brought mainly by net cash provided by the operating activities of P12.5 million, collection of 

loan of P22 million, interest income received from loans of P11.5 million, and receipt of dividends 

from CLI of P8.7 million.  This was partially offset by payment of dividends of P15.4 million, 

purchase of equipment and systems application and deposits of P8.6 million and buy-back of 

shares of P1.0 million.  

 

Total receivables both current and non-current this year amounted to P282.6 million as against 

last year of P306.2 million. The net decrease of P23.6 million was brought by repayment of loan 

amounting to P22 million and P1.8 million from lease rentals, interest receivable from bank 

deposits and loans and write-off of allowance. 

  

Other current assets decreased from P0.5 million to P0.4 million this year.  The decrease was due 

to lower advances to employees and other deposits and utilized creditable withholding tax. 

 

Available-for-sale financial assets related to a quoted club share at fair value price as of December 

2020 and 2019 amounting to P35.0 million and P37.0 million, respectively.   

 

Investment in an associate decreased from P420.2 million in 2019 to P419.1 million this year.  

The net decrease was due to equity share in net income of CLI of P7.6 million reduced by the 

cash dividend received this year amounting to P8.7 million. 

 

Investment properties, Property and equipment and Intangible assets increased from P205.5 

million in 2019 to P212.9 million this period.  This was brought by acquisition of equipment and 
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payroll application for the payroll system upgrade of P8.6 million and net of accumulated 

depreciation of P1.2 million. 

 

Total liabilities increased from P8.7 million in 2019 to P11.8 million this year.  The increase of 

P3.1 million was due to net increase in accrued operating expenses and other payables of P0.3 

million, increase in refundable security deposits of P1.4 million, retirement benefit liability of 

P1.7 million, and decrease in tax liabilities of P0.3 million. 

 

Total equity as of 31 December 2020 amounted to P1,022.7 million and P1,016.1 million in 

December 2019.  Retained earnings amounted to P503.7 million as of December 2020 as 

compared to P489.3 million in December 2019.  The increase in retained earnings was due to 

higher net income after non-controlling interests of P20.2 million partially offset by cash dividend 

of P5.8 million.  The Company also had unrealized loss on fair value of financial asset at fair 

value through other comprehensive income of P2.0 million and remeasurement loss on retirement 

benefits P1.1 million. Non-controlling interest of minority shareholders also recognized P5.9 

million share in the net income of the Company and received dividends of P9.7 million. 

 

The equity attributable to equity holders of the parent amounted to P660.0 million and P649.6 

million as of December 2020 and 2019, respectively.  The net book value per share as of 

December 2020 was P11.45 as against December 2019 of P11.24.  The earnings per share 

attributable to the equity holders of the parent as of December 2020 and 2019 were P0.35 and 

P0.32, respectively. 

 

 

Year Ended 2019 

 

 Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc. (KPH) and its subsidiaries (the “Company”) recorded a net 

income of P26.6 million in 2019, higher than P14.2 million in 2018 and lower than P54.9 million 

in 2017.  KPH has higher revenue of P57.0 million in 2019, as against P48.5 million in 2018, and 

lower than P91.2 million in 2017.  Operating expenses which decreased from P31.4 million in 

2018 to P27.8 million in 2019 and slightly higher than in 2017 of P23.6 million, contributed to 

the increase in net income.  Revenues in 2019 were mainly from rental income, interest earned 

from loans and short-term deposits, equity in net earnings of an associate, and management fees. 

 

 Rental revenue for the year amounted to P28.5 million as against rental revenue of P22.7 million 

and P18.0 million in 2018 and 2017, respectively.  Lease of properties to third parties contributed 

to the increase in revenue which amounted to P15.3 million in 2019 as compared with P9.5 

million and P4.3 million in 2018 and 2017, respectively. Rental from affiliates amounted to P13.2 

million both for 2019 and 2018 and P13.7 million in 2017.  

 

 The Company earned interest income of P18.3 million in 2019, P12.2 million in 2018, and P12.5 

million in 2017.  The interest earned from the loans granted to a related company amounted to 

P16.5 million in 2019, P10.7 million in 2018 and P11.5 million in 2017. The increase was due to 

higher interest rates ranging from 4.8% to 7.0% as against 3.0% to 6.3% in 2018 and 2.8% to 

3.5% in 2017.  There was no repayment of loan in 2019. Interest rates are agreed upon with related 

party on a comparable market rate basis on date of granting or renewal of the loan. The Company 

also earned interest from short-term deposits amounted to P1.8 million, P1.5 million, and P0.9 

million in 2019, 2018 and 2017, respectively. 

 

 In 2018, the Company realized a gain on the sale of investment properties of P1.9 million from 

sale of its residential unit at Batangas City as compared to the gain recognized in 2017 amounting 

to P49.6 million from the sale of its condominium units in Makati City, Cebu City and residential 

unit at Batangas City.  The proceeds received from the sale of properties amounted to P2.3 million 

in 2018 as against P51.7 million in 2017.  There was no sale of investment property in 2019. 
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 The equity in net earnings of associate - CLI as of 31 December 2019 amounted to P8.9 million, 

compared to P10.0 million and P8.7 million in 2018 and 2017, respectively.  Increase or decrease 

in equity in net earnings of associate depends upon the net income realized by CLI during the 

years.  The Company received cash dividend from CLI amounting to P10.5 million in 2019, P8.7 

million in 2018 and P3.5 million in 2017.  

 

 Management fees charged to related parties amounted to P0.8 million both for 2019 and 2018 

compared to P1.8 million in 2017. The number of related companies being served by the Parent 

Company remained the same for both 2019 and 2018. 

  

 Operating expenses amounted to P27.8 million, P31.4 million, and P23.6 million in 2019, 2018 

and 2017, respectively.  The decrease in expenses was brought mainly by: a) lower salaries & 

benefits due to lower accrual of retirement plan benefits and bonuses; b) lower repairs and 

maintenance relating to properties for rent; and c) lower taxes and licenses paid to local 

government.  The decrease was offset by increases in a) provision for impairment on creditable 

withholding tax; and b) rental expense relating to properties for rent.   

 

 The Company have unrealized fair value gain on financial asset fair value through other 

comprehensive income of P2.0 million in 2019 and P15 million in 2018.  The Company also 

recognized this year P0.2 million remeasurement gain on retirement benefits assets, net of tax, 

based on actuarial of retirement plan funded this December 2019. 

  

 Financial Condition 

 

The cash position of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2019 amounted to P50.7 

million as against the same period last year of P39.5 million.  The increase of P11.2 million was 

brought mainly by interest income received from loans and deposits of P18.4 million and receipt 

of dividends from CLI of P10.5 million.  This was partially offset by payment of dividends of 

P5.8 million, funding of retirement benefit amounting to P10.6, and net cash used for operating 

activities of P1.0 million.  

 

Total receivables both current and non-current this year amounted to P306.2 million as against 

last year of P305.6 million. The net increase of P0.6 million was brought by lease rental and 

interest receivable from bank deposits and loans.  

 

Other current assets decreased to P0.5 million as against P1.0 million last year.  The decrease was 

due to lower input VAT net applied against output tax and lower advances to employees and other 

deposits. 

 

Available-for-sale financial assets related to a quoted club share at fair value price as of December 

2019 and 2018 amounting to P37.0 million and P35.0 million, respectively.   

 

Investment in an associate decreased from P421.7 million in 2018 to P420.2 million this year.  

The net decrease was due to equity share in net income of CLI of P8.9 million reduced by the 

cash dividend received this year amounting to P10.5 million. 

 

Investment properties and Property and equipment remained about the same at P205.4 million in 

2018 to P205.5 million this period.   

 

Total liabilities decreased from P19.2 million in 2018 to P8.7 million this year.  The decrease of 

P10.6 million was due to a) payment of retirement benefit trust fund amounting to P10.6 million; 

b) lower security deposits by P1.2 million; c) decrease in income tax payable by P0.4 million; 

and d) net increase in accrual of operating expenses of P1.6 million. 
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Total equity as of 31 December 2019 amounted to P1,016.1 million and P993.1 million in 

December 2018.  Retained earnings amounted to P489.3 million as of December 2019 as 

compared to P476.7 million in December 2018.  The increase in retained earnings was due to 

higher net income after non-controlling interests of P18.3 million partially offset by cash dividend 

of P5.8 million.  The Company also had unrealized gain on fair value of financial asset at fair 

value through other comprehensive income of P2.0 million and remeasurement gain on retirement 

benefits, net of tax of P0.2 million.  Non-controlling interest of minority shareholders also 

recognized P8.2 million share in the net income of the Company. 

 

The equity attributable to equity holders of the parent amounted to P649.6 million and P634.9 

million as of December 2019 and 2018, respectively.  The net book value per share as of 

December 2019 was P11.24 as against December 2018 of P10.98.  The earnings per share 

attributable to the equity holders of the parent as of December 2019 and 2018 were P0.32 and 

P0.09, respectively. 

 

Plan of Action for 2022 

 

KPH shall focus on maintaining and adding value on its investment properties.  The strategies 

may include, among others, the purchase of shares of stock, purchase of additional investment 

properties, and increasing occupancy and rental rates.  Certain properties may be considered for 

sale where it can contribute the best value to the Company and its shareholders.  Investment 

properties of strategic value shall be reviewed for further investments where appropriate. 

 

Key Performance Indicators 

 

The key performance indicators of the Company for the last three (3) fiscal years are follows: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Particulars 2021 2020 2019 

Current Ratio  

172.71 

 

38.37 

 

46.54 (Current Assets/Current Liabilities) 

Acid Test Ratio or Quick Ratio 

172.20 38.33 46.47 (Monetary Current Assets/Current Liabilities) 

Solvency Ratio 

(Net Income + Depreciation)/Total Liabilities 

 

55.35 

 

2.31 

 

3.08 

Debt to Equity Ratio 

(Total Liabilities/Stockholders’ Equity) 0.004 0.01  0.01  

Assets to Equity Ratio 1.00 1.01 1.01  

Debt Ratio 

0.004 0.01 0.01 (Total Liabilities/Total Assets) 

Return on Assets (%)  

(Net Income/Total Assets) 20.86 2.53 2.60 

Return on Equity (%) 

20.94 2.56 2.62 (Net Income/Stockholders’ Equity) 

Net Profit Margin (%) 

(Net Income/Total Revenues 71.53 46.48 46.64 

Earnings per Share Attributable to Equity  

Holders of Parent (P) 4.61 0.35 0.32 

Book Value per Share Attributable to Equity 

Holders of Parent (P) 16.19 11.45 11.24 
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There are no known events that may trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is 

material to the Company, including any default or acceleration of an obligation that was not 

disclosed.  There are no material off-balance sheet transactions, obligations (including contingent 

obligations), and other relationships of the Company with unsolicited entities or other persons 

created during the reporting period that has not been disclosed.  The Company has no material 

commitment for capital expenditures for the next twelve (12) months that would need to raise or 

generate funds for.  

 

The COVID-19 global pandemic and the challenges it brought to the Philippines continued in 

2021. During the year, the National Capital Region continued to be under the extended General 

Community Quarantine (GCQ) with its less stringent guidelines from 1 January 2021 to 21 March 

2021.  However, with COVID-19 cases spiking at an average of least 6,000 per day in March 

2021 compared to 2,000 per day in February 2021, the government then put the National Capital 

Region (NCR), Bulacan, Laguna and Rizal (collectively known as “NCR Plus”) under Enhanced 

Community Quarantine (ECQ) with its stricter lockdown guidelines effective 22 March 

2021. Unlike the first ECQ in 2020, public transports were allowed to operate but at reduced 

capacity. Likewise, curfew has been imposed in NCR Plus forcing businesses to adjust its 

operating hours. The NCR Plus bubble “lockdown” was later eased to the Modified Enhanced 

Community Quarantine (MECQ) on 12 April 2021 and has since been extended up to 14 May 

2021.  This was further eased to GCQ with “heightened restrictions” until 31 May 2021. From 

June 1 to June 15, 2021, GCQ was extended “with restrictions.” NCR Plus remained under GCQ 

“with some restrictions” from June 16 to July 15, 2021. From July 16 to 22, 2021, NCR was put 

back to normal GCQ only to be put back under GCQ with “heightened restriction” from July 23 

to July 31, 2021as the health department confirmed the local transmission of the COVID-19 Delta 

variant.  

 

NCR reverted to the stricter MECQ from September 1 to 15, 2021. After this period, the 

government adopted the new Alert Level System that favored localized, small scale “granular” 

lockdowns instead of region-wide quarantine measures as it continued to balance the need to 

reopen the economy and promoting public health. Under the new system, the NCR was put under 

Alert Level 4 from September 16 to October 15, 2021.  It was later scaled down to Level 3 from 

October 16 to November 4, 2021.  The NCR was later put under Level 2 from November 5, 2021 

to December 31, 2021 despite the growing concern over the new COVID-19 Omicron variant. 

 

As of 31 December 2021, the Philippines has recorded 2,843,979 cases of COVID-19 with 

2,778,242 recoveries and 51,504 reported deaths due to the virus. Since the vaccination rollout 

last 1 March 2021 until year end, about 49.8 Mn individuals have completed their vaccination or 

about 45% of the 111 Mn Philippine population. At the current rate, the Philippines could have 

70% of its people vaccinated (2 doses) by April 2022. 

 

In compliance to the government proclamations, memorandum, and guidelines and in order to 

mitigate the risk of spreading COVID-19 in the workplace, the Parent Company has provided 

alternative work options such as working from home to ensure continued business 

operations.  The Parent Company continues to be in close communication with its stakeholders 

during 2021’s GCQ, ECQ, MECQ and the different Alert level periods that includes, among 

others, it's employees, lessees, borrowers, industry regulators, suppliers and service providers. 

100% of the Parent Company’s personnel have received their second vaccination dose. 

 

Notwithstanding the prevailing community quarantine level and the current COVID-19 situation 

in the Philippines, there are no known trends, commitments, events, or uncertainties that will have 

a material impact, whether favorable and unfavorable on the revenues or income from continuing 

operations of the Parent Company. There are also no off-balance sheet transactions, 

arrangements, obligations (including contingent obligations), and other relationships of the Parent 

Company with unconsolidated entities or other persons created during the year. 
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7 - Financial Statements 

 

The audited consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended 31 December 2021 

and schedules listed in the accompanying Index to Financial Statements and Supplementary 

Schedules are filed as part of this Form 17-A. 

 

The financial statements attached to the report include the audited statements of financial position, 

statements of income, statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in 

stockholders’ equity, statements of cash flows and notes to the financial statements.  Such reports 

form part of the attachment to the SEC Annual Report Form 17-A. 

 

 

8 - Information on Independent Accountants and Other Related Matters 

 

(a) External Audit Fees and Services 

 

(i)  Audit and Related Fees - The Company’s auditor for 2021 is Isla Lipana & Co. (PwC) 

to audit the current year’s financial statements.  The aggregate fee billed by Isla Lipana 

for the audit of the Company’s annual financial statements was P0.5 million from 2019 

to 2021.  There were no other services performed by Isla Lipana for during the last three 

(3) years.  The services performed by the Company’s external auditors and the fees are 

reviewed by the Audit and Risk Management Committee prior to submission to the 

Board of Directors for approval. 

 

(ii) Tax Fees –No tax fees were paid for the years 2020 and 2019. Tax service fee 

amounting to P0.5 million was paid to Isla Lipana & Co. in relation to services for tax 

case of GMRI with the BIR for the year 2017. 

 

(iii) Other Fees – No other fees were paid for the years 2021, 2020, and 2019. 

 

(iv) Audit and Risk Management Committee’s Approval Policies & Procedures – The 

Committee evaluates proposals based on the quality of service, commitment for 

deadline and fees.  The Committee may require a presentation from each proponent to 

clarify some issues. 

 

(b) Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial 

Disclosure 

 

Accounting standards in accordance with PFRS are stated in Note 20 to the financial 

statements.  For the last three (3) fiscal years, there were no disagreements with the 

independent accountants relating to accounting principles or practices, financial statements 

disclosure, or auditing scope or procedure. 
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PART III – CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION 

 

9 - Directors and Executive Officers of the Issuer 

 

(a) Directors, Including Independent Directors and Executive Officers 

 

There are seven (7) members of the Board, three (3) of whom are independent directors.  

The term of office of each member is one (1) year and the members are elected at the Annual 

Stockholders’ Meeting to hold office until the next succeeding annual meeting and until their 

respective successors have been elected and qualified.  A director who is elected to fill any 

vacancy holds office for the unexpired portion of the term of his predecessor.   

 

The current members of the Board of Directors are the following: 

 

Board of Directors 

    

(i) Chng Chee Keong, 49, Malaysian, has been Chairman of the Board since 8 May 2020.  

He joined Keppel Corporation Limited as General Manager of Group Risk Compliance 

in November 2016.  He assumed the role of Chief Financial Officer, Keppel Offshore 

& Marine from January 1, 2020.  He had been with the Credit Suisse Group in 

Singapore and Hong Kong for 16 years where he last served as their Regional Head of 

Internal Audit (Asia Pacific). Being part of the global audit leadership team, he was in-

charge of delivering risk-based audit plans and maintaining oversight of the region’s 

consolidated risks. This included annual and continuous risk assessments, as well as the 

development of audit approaches taking into consideration changes in risk profile, 

market, and operating environment.  He was based in Australia in the earlier part of his 

career and took on roles in the areas of audit and risk management with Price 

Waterhouse and Ord Minnett Group. He started his career with Price Waterhouse 

Singapore, having graduated with a Bachelor of Commerce (Accounting and 

Information System) with Merit degree from the University of New South Wales. He 

is a Chartered Accountant with Chartered Accountants Australia & New Zealand 

(previously the Institute of Chartered Accountants Australia).  

 

(ii) Alan I. Claveria, 50, Filipino, has been the President and regular Director of the 

Company since 14 September 2017.  Prior to his appointment, he was the Senior 

Manager, Administration and Corporate Affairs of Keppel Philippines Marine, Inc.  He 

is concurrently the President and Director of Consort Capital, Inc. He also holds the 

position of Treasurer and Director in KPSI Property, Inc., and other Keppel companies 

in the Philippines. He provides advice in matters relating to corporate affairs and 

communication, administration, and human resources, drawing from his experience 

from holding various positions in Keppel's different business units involved in 

shipbuilding and ship repair, towage and salvage, investment, and real estate.  Mr. 

Claveria holds a Master’s in Business Administration degree from the Ateneo Graduate 

School of Business and finished BS Management, Major in Legal Management at the 

Ateneo de Manila University.  He has been with Keppel in the Philippines for over 20 

years. 

  

(iii) Celso P. Vivas, 74, Filipino, has been Independent Director of Keppel Philippines 

Holdings, Inc. since June 2005 and is currently the Company’s Lead Independent 

Director and Chairman of the Audit & Risk Management Committee (ARMC).   He is 

an Independent Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee of Keppel Philippines 

Marine, Inc. and Independent Director and member of the Audit Committee of Keppel 

Philippines Properties, Inc.  Mr. Vivas is also an Independent Director of Megawide 

Construction Corp., Chairman of its Audit and Compliance Committee, and member of 

both the Board Risk Oversight and Governance, Nomination and Remuneration 
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Committee.  He is also an Independent Director of Republic Glass Holdings Corp., 

Chairman of its Governance, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, and member 

of the ARMC.  He is also an Independent Director of Goodsoil Marine Realty, Inc., 

Goodwealth Realty Development, Inc., subsidiaries of the Company, Independent 

director of Keppel Subic Shipyard, Inc. and regular director of Consort Land, Inc.  He 

was Risk Consulting Partner and Assurance Business Advisory Partner of SGV & 

Company until his retirement in 2001.  Mr. Vivas obtained his Bachelor’s Degree in 

Business Administration (Cum Laude) from the University of the East.  He also 

obtained a Master’s Degree in   Business Management from the Asian Institute of 

Management (SGV & Co. Scholar).  He is also a graduate of Company Directors’ 

Course from Australian Institute of Company Directors (ICD Scholar).  Mr. Vivas is a 

Certified Public Accountant and has over 50 years of experience in audit, finance, 

enterprise risk management, and corporate governance. 

 

(iv)  Ramon J. Abejuela, 72 years old, Filipino, has been Independent Director of Keppel 

Philippines Holdings, Inc. since 14 September 2017.  He is also the Independent 

Director of Keppel Philippines Properties, Inc. (KPPI) from November 1999 to June 

2008. He was re-elected as Independent Director in 2009 and is currently the Chairman 

of the Audit Committee of KPPI. He was elected as Independent Director of Keppel 

Philippine Marine, Inc. and Keppel Subic Shipyard, Inc. in June 2020.  He also serves 

as Director and Vice Chairman of the Board of Philippine Nutri-Foods Corporation and 

NCP Publishing Inc. since 2004. Mr. Abejuela holds a Bachelor of Science in Chemical 

Engineering Degree (cum laude) from De La Salle University and a Master’s Degree 

in Business Management – General Management Curriculum from the Asian Institute 

of Management.  Mr. Abejuela has more than 45 years of experience in the field of 

financial planning, control, and consultancy. 

 

(v) Leonardo R. Arguelles, Jr., 72, Filipino, has been Independent Director of Keppel 

Philippines Holdings, Inc. since 19 June 2020 and Keppel Philippines Properties, Inc. 

since 13 August 2020.  He was the President and Director of Unicapital Securities Inc. 

(Stockbroker) from 2001 to March 2019 and Managing Director of Unicapital, Inc 

(Investment House) from 2003 to March 2019. He was an Advisory Board Member of 

Basic Energy Corporation (listed company) from 2012 to 2019 and Director of Des 

Eaux Utilities Corp from 2007 to March 2019.  He was an Independent Director of 

Royal Bank of Scotland, Manila Branch from 2002 to 2009 and Anglo Philippines 

Holdings (listed company) from 2004 to 2007.  He was previously Executive Director 

of Keppel IVI Investments from 1989 to 1997. He graduated from Ateneo de Manila 

University with AB Economics. He has more than 45 years of experience in the field 

of investment banking. 

 

(vi) Stefan Tong Wai Mun, 49, Malaysian, has been regular Director of the Company since 

June 2007 and had been the President from same period until 14 September 2017.  He 

has been a regular Director of Keppel Philippine Properties, Inc. since June 2007 and 

has been elected as regular Director of Keppel Philippines Marine, Inc. in February 

2010 and Executive Vice-President in June 2011.  He is also a regular Director of 

various Keppel companies in the Philippines.  Mr. Tong graduated from University of 

Western Australia with a Bachelor’s Degree in Accounting and Finance (Honors).  He 

is a Chartered Accountant and a member of the Chartered Accountants Australia and 

New Zealand.  He has more than 20 years of experience in banking, finance, and real 

estate. 

 

(vii) Felicidad V. Razon, 61, Filipino, has been regular Director of the Company since May 

2014.  She joined the Company as Finance Manager in May 2008 and has been 

appointed as Treasurer in June 2008 and elected/appointed as Vice President/Treasurer 

in November 2013.  She is also a Chairman/President of Goodsoil Marine Realty, Inc. 
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and Goodwealth Realty Development Corp., Director and President of Consort Land, 

Inc. and regular director and officer of KPH related companies. Prior to Keppel Group, 

Ms. Razon has been Finance Manager/Officer of various local companies involved in 

manufacturing, shipping and freight forwarding. She graduated from Polytechnic 

University of the Philippines with Bachelor of Science Degree in Commerce Major in 

Accountancy and is a Certified Public Accountant.  She has more than 30 years of 

experience in her field of profession. 

 

Executive Officers 

 

(i)  Alan I. Claveria – President - (See foregoing Director’s profile) 

 

(ii)  Felicidad V. Razon, Vice President/Treasurer – (See foregoing Director’s profile) 

 

(iii) Ma. Melva E. Valdez, Corporate Secretary – 62, Filipino, has been the Corporate 

Secretary of the Corporation since 1999. She also served as Director of KPH from 24 

June 2008 to 11 June 2009. She is a Senior Partner of the law firm of Bello Valdez and 

Fernandez Law Offices.  She has been the Corporate Secretary of KPHI, KPPI and 

Mabuhay Vinyl Corporation (listed corporations) and Keppel Subic Shipyard, Inc., 

Keppel Batangas Shipyard, Inc., and various Keppel companies in the Philippines. She 

is likewise the Corporate Secretary of Asian Institute of Management, Keppel Subic 

Shipyard, Inc., Keppel Batangas Shipyard, Inc. and various Keppel companies in the 

Philippines, Gruppo EMS Inc., EMS Resources Technology Inc., EMS Services 

Philippines, Inc., EMS Services International Inc., Creotec Philippines Inc., Wartsila 

Philippines Inc., Calamba Medical Center, Inc., Calamba Cancer Center, Inc., Saint 

John the Baptist Medical Center, Inc., Kopiko Philippines Corporation, Sagara Metro 

Plastics Industrial Corporation, Hi-P Philippines Technology Corporation and Toyota 

Corolla Sapporo Philippines Holdings, Inc.; Atty. Valdez  holds directorship positions 

in the following companies: Servier Philippines, Inc., Leighton Contractors (Phils), 

Inc., Suretrac Holdings Inc., Asia Contractors Holdings, Inc. Cambe Dental Billing 

Services, Inc., Logwin Air + Ocean Philippines, Inc., KPSI Property, Inc., Opon Realty 

& Development Corp., and Opon-KE Properties, Inc.; and also a trustee of the AIM 

Scientific Research Foundation, Inc. Atty. Valdez graduated from the University of the 

Philippines as a holder of degrees of Bachelor of Arts in Political Science and Bachelor 

of Laws. She is a regular lecturer of the Paralegal Training Program of the University 

of the Philippines Law Center. She is the incoming Chairperson of the Membership 

Committee of the Inter-Pacific Bar Association. She has more than 36 years of working 

experience in her field of profession as a lawyer. 

 

(iv) Pamela Ann T. Cayabyab, 39, Filipino, has been the Asst. Corporate Secretary of the 

Company since 7 May 2021. She has been the Asst. Corporate Secretary of other 

companies such as Mabuhay Vinyl Corporation (a listed company) and MVC 

Properties since November 2020; Fujita Philippines Construction and Development, 

Inc., since April 2017; Keppel Philippines Properties, Inc. (a listed company) since 

June 2021 and various Keppel companies; Brother International Philippines Corp. 

since May 2015; PPG Coatings (Philippines) Inc. since March 2012; Tosoh Polyvin 

Corporation since March 2011 and various non-stock condominium 

corporations/foundation. Atty. Cayabyab is a Senior Associate of Bello Valdez & 

Fernandez.  She obtained her Bachelor of Arts in Political Science from the University 

of the Philippines – Diliman in 2003 and her Juris Doctor degree from the Ateneo de 

Manila University School of Law in 2007. She was admitted to the Philippine Bar in 

2008.  
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(b) Significant Employees 

 

There are no employees other than the officers mentioned in the preceding subsection who 

are expected to make a significant contribution to the business.  

 

(c) Family Relationship 

 

There are no family relationships up to the fourth civil degree either by consanguinity or 

affinity among directors, officers, and persons nominated or chosen by the company to 

become directors, officers, any security holder of certain record, beneficial owner or 

management.  

  

(d) Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings 

 

To the knowledge and/or information of the Company, none of the directors and officers 

was involved in any bankruptcy proceedings during the last five (5) years.  Neither have 

they been convicted by final judgment in any criminal proceedings, or been subjected to any 

order, judgment, or decree of any court of jurisdiction, permanently or temporarily 

enjoining, barring, suspending, or otherwise limiting their involvement in any type of 

business, securities, commodities or banking activities, nor found in an action by any court 

or administrative bodies to have violated a securities and commodities law or regulation. 

 

10 - Executive Compensation 

 

 As the Company is an investment holding company, it has three (3) senior officers, namely the 

President, Vice President/Treasurer, and Internal Audit and Risk Manager. 

 

The total aggregate compensation (inclusive of perquisites and other personal benefits) of the 

senior officers of the Company during the last two (2) fiscal years and the projected aggregate 

compensation to be paid for the current fiscal year are as follows: 

 

Description Year 
Salary 

(in Php) 
Bonus 

Other Annual 

Compensation 

Aggregate for All 

Officers 

2022 

Estimate 
8,900,000 None None 

2021 8,709,000 None None 

2020 8,611,000 None None 

Aggregate for All 

Officers  

& Directors as a 

Group 

2022 

Estimate 
9,296,000 None None 

2021 9,105,000 None None 

2020 8,921,000 None None 
 

Under the Company’s By-Laws, directors shall receive such compensation for their services from 

time to time as maybe fixed by the stockholders.  There are no warrants or options held by the 

Company’s officers and directors.  The Company does not have any other arrangements pursuant 

to which any director is compensated directly or indirectly for any service provided as a director.  

There are also no special employment contracts with executive officers of the Company.  The 

Company has no existing options, warrants or rights to purchase any securities. 
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11 - Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners and Management 

 

Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners 

 

As of 31 December 2021, the Company knows of no one who beneficially owns in excess of 5% 

of the Company’s common stock except as set forth in the table below: 

 

Title of 

Class 

Name, Address of Record/ 

Beneficial Owner 

Name of Beneficial 

Owner & 

Relationship with 

Record Owner 

Citizenship 
No. of  

Shares Held 

Percent  

of Class 

Common Kepwealth, Inc. 1  

Unit 3B, Country Space 1 Bldg. 

133 Sen. Gil J. Puyat Ave., 

Salcedo Village, Brgy. Bel-Air, 

Makati City  

 

 

Alan I. Claveria 

(Director) 

 

 

Filipino 

‘A’:    28,817,182  

 

53.25 
‘B’:      1,715,748 

30,532,930 

Common Keppel Corporation Ltd. 2 

1 Harbour Front Ave., #18-01 

Keppel Bay Tower, Singapore 

098632 

 

Chng Chee Keong 

(Director) 

 

Malaysian ‘B’:    16,894,087 

 

29.46 

Common PCD Nominee Corp. 3 

37/F Enterprise Bldg., 

Ayala Avenue, Makati City       

 

 

 

 

 

Filipino 

Filipino 

Foreign  

‘A’:      4,432,179 

‘B’:      2,057,646 

‘B’:         544,974 

           7,034,799 

 

12.27 

 
1. Kepwealth, Inc. is majority-owned by Kepventure, Inc. The Chairman, or in his absence, the President of 

 Kepwealth, Inc. is duly authorized as proxy to vote in the shares of Kepwealth, Inc. in the Company. 

 

2. Keppel Corporation Ltd. (KCL) is listed in the Singapore Stock Exchange.  The Chairman of the Board, or in his 

 absence, the President or in his absence, the Chairman of the meeting, shall have the right to vote or direct 

 voting or disposition of the shareholdings of KCL in the Company. 

 

3. PCD Nominee Corp. is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Philippine Central Depository, Inc. (PCD).  It is the 

registered owner of the shares in the books of the Company’s transfer agents in the Philippines.  The beneficial 

owners of such shares are PCD’s participants.  PCD holds the shares on their beneficial owner's behalf or on behalf 

of their (PCD) clients.  PCD is a private company organized by the major institutions actively participating in the 

Philippine capital markets to implement an automated book-entry system of handling securities transactions in the 

Philippines.  (excluding 141,000 KPH and 3,600 KPHB shares which are still scripless as of 31 December 2021) 

 

Security Ownership of Management as of 31 December 2021 

 

Title of 

Class 
Name of Beneficial Owner 

Amount and 

Nature of 

Beneficial 

Ownership 

Citizenship 
Percent of 

Class 

Common 

Chng Chee Keong / Chairman / Director ‘B’:     1(r) Malaysian - 

Alan I. Claveria / President/Director ‘A’:   38(r) Filipino - 

Celso P. Vivas / Lead Independent Director ‘A’:     1(r) Filipino - 

Ramon J. Abejuela / Independent Director ‘A’:     1(r) Filipino - 

Leonardo R. Arguelles / Independent Director ‘B’:     1(r) Filipino - 

Stefan Tong Wai Mun / Director ‘B’:     1(r) Malaysian - 

Felicidad V. Razon / Vice President/Treasurer /Director  ‘A’:     1(r) Filipino - 

Ma. Melva E. Valdez / Corporate Secretary - Filipino - 

Pamela Ann T. Cayabyab/ Asst. Corp. Sec. - Filipino - 

   ‘A’:41; ‘B’:3   
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Free float level  

 

The Company has 17.29% or 9,915,358 shares owned by the public out of the 57,342,419 total 

outstanding shares as of 31 December 2021. 

 

12 - Certain Relationships and Related Transactions 

 

In the ordinary course of business, the Company has transactions with its affiliates.  The 

significant transactions with affiliates are as follows:  
 

  
 

Transactions 
Outstanding  

receivable (payable)  

Related party Notes 2021 2020 2019 2021 2020 Terms and conditions 

Entities under common control        
 Loans (a)       Outstanding balance is 

collectible in cash, with terms 
of 88 to 90 days subject for 
renewal, interest-bearing at 
3.1% to 3.8% per annum in 
2021 (2020 – 3.4% to 4.9%), 
and unsecured. 

  KPMI       

   Principal 3 (10,000,000) (22,000,000) - 240,000,000 250,000,000 
   Interest income 3 8,641,563 11,256,118 16,477,352 1,223,442 1,112,281 

 Leases (b)        
  Rental income        
   KPMI   8,636,598 10,232,728 12,816,179 30,296,494 30,158,922 Outstanding balance is 

collectible in cash within the 
first five (5) days of each 
month, non-interest bearing 
and unsecured.   

      Keppel IVI Investment, Inc. 
    (KIVI) 

 

300,000 300,000 300,000 - - 
   Keppel Energy and  
    Consultancy, Inc. (KECI)  

 
120,000 120,000 120,000 - - 

 7 9,056,598 10,652,728 13,245,179 30,296,494 30,158,922  

 Advance rentals        Outstanding balance is to be 
applied on the last monthly 
rental at end of lease term, is 
non-interest bearing and 
unsecured.   

 KPMI   175,363 - - (93,982)  (269,345)  
 KIVI  - - - (25,000) (25,000) 
 KECI  - - - (10,000) (10,000) 

 7, 10 175,363 - - (128,892) (304,345)   

  Refundable deposits 
   KPMI 
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175,363 

 
- 

 
- 

 
(93,982) 

 
(269,346) 

Outstanding balance is payable 
in cash within 60 days from end 
of lease term, non-interest 
bearing and unsecured. 

 Various expenses and charges (c)        
  KPMI   7,304,509 2,500,703 2,088,162 - - Outstanding balance is 

collectible in cash on demand, 
non-interest bearing and 
unsecured. 
 

Keppel Enterprises Services    
Pte. Ltd. 

  
1,487,751 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

  Keppel Subic Shipyard,  
   Inc. (KSSI)  

  
 -  

 
14,345 

 
16,309 

 
- 

 
- 

  Kepventure, Inc.  - - 11,625 - - 
  KIVI   - - 11,188 - - 
  Keppel Infrastructure Holdings  
   Pte. Ltd. 

  
- - 10,204 - - 

  Keppel DHCS Pte. Ltd.  - - 5,801 - - 

     - - 

      Payroll service fees (d)       
            KSSI  1,847,942 570,098 - 125,602 268,505 
            KPMI  1,757,056 541,800 - 804,959 351,154 

  3,604,998 1,111,898 - 930,561 619,569 

 Management fees (e)       
  KECI   240,000 240,000 240,000 - - 
  KIVI  180,000 180,000 180,000 - - 
  Kepventure, Inc.  60,000 60,000 60,000 - - 

  480,000 480,000 480,000 -  

Other income       
 Commission (f)       
  KPMI  828,000 1,123,485  - - 
 Director’s fees       
  KPPI  190,000 170,000 220,000 - - 
  KPMI  - - 60,000 - - 

     - -  

Due from related parties 3    930,561 619,569  

Associates        
 Cash dividends received 6 7,510,465 8,733,099 10,479,719 - - Outstanding balance is 

collectible in cash on pay-out 
date as approved by the 
related party’s BOD, non-
interest bearing and 
unsecured. 
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Transactions 
Outstanding  

receivable (payable)  

Related party Notes 2021 2020 2019 2021 2020 Terms and conditions 

Shareholders of Parent Company 
 Cash dividends declared and paid       Outstanding balance is 

payable in cash on pay-out 
date as approved by the 
Parent Company’s BOD, non-
interest bearing and 
unsecured. 

  Kepwealth, Inc.         3,053,293 3,053,293  3,053,293  - - 
  KCL  1,689,409 1,689,409 1,689,409 - - 
  Others  1,019,130 1,019,130 1,037,640 (674,282) (627,936) 

   10, 14 5,761,832 5,761,832 5,780,342 (674,282) (627,936) 

 Various expenses and charges (b)       Outstanding balance is 
collectible in cash on demand, 
non-interest bearing and 
unsecured. 

  Kepwealth, Inc.  40,789 501,405 23,250 - - 
  KCL   78,811 - 9,000 - - 

 Management fees (e)       
  Kepwealth, Inc.   276,000 276,000 276,000 - - 

Non-controlling interests (NCI)        
 Cash dividends declared and paid  9,899,808 9,654,808 - - - Outstanding balance is 

payable in cash on pay-out 
date as approved by the 
subsidiary’s BOD, non-interest 
bearing and unsecured. 

 

(a) Loans 

 

The Group granted short-term, interest-bearing loans to KPMI. Movements in loans receivable 

for the years ended December 31 are as follows:  

 

 2021 2020 2019 

January 1 250,000,000 272,000,000 272,000,000 

Collections (10,000,000) (22,000,000) - 

December 31 240,000,000 250,000,000 272,000,000 

 

(b) Leases 

 

The Group leases certain investments properties to related parties (Note 7).  The Group granted 

lease concessions to KPMI which amounted to P2.7 million in 2021 (2020 - P2.6 million; 2019 – 

nil)  

 

(c) Various expenses and charges 

 

The Group paid for various reimbursable expenses which are utilized in the normal operations of 

the related parties. 

 

The Group also incurred share in various expenses due to KPMI relating to clearing and levelling 

operations on leased out properties amounting to P2.5 million and P2.1 million in 2020 and 2019, 

respectively.  There was no such expense in 2021. 

  

In June 2021, the Company paid commission to KPMI related to the sale of interests in land rights 

amounting to P7.2 million. 

 

(d) Payroll service fees 

 

In 2020, the Group entered into payroll service agreements with KSSI and KPMI for the use of 

the payroll system of the Group.  The Group charges these parties at agreed service fees for the 

one-time and recurring charges incurred by the Group.  These agreements are considered renewed 

every year thereafter and subject to mutual amendments or termination by the parties. 

 

(e) Management fees 

 

Since 2013 the Group had management agreements with related companies with monthly 

management fees which are subject to change depending upon the extent and volume of services 
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provided by the Group.  The services cover regular consultancy, handling of financial reporting, 

personnel and administration services including payroll and other government documentary 

requirements.  The agreements are considered renewed every year thereafter, unless one (1) party 

gives the other a written notice of termination at least three (3) months prior to the expiration 

date.   

 

(f) Commission  

 

The Group entered into an agreement with KPMI to assist the latter in its bidding activities for 

select projects with the Group earning a 1% share in KPMI’s revenues.  The income is recognized 

under other income in the consolidated statements of income amounting to P1.1 in 2020.  There 

was no income earned in 2021.  

 

The Group also entered into an agreement with KPMI in 2021 to assist the latter in the sale of its 

improvements in a piece of land at Bauan, Batangas with the Company earning a 2% share in the 

sale. The income recognized a commission of P0.8 million 2021 (2020-nil). 

  

 

PART IV - CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 

13 – Corporate Governance  

 

Per SEC Memorandum Circular No. 15, Series of 2017 and SEC Memorandum Circular No. 10, 

Series of 2019, publicly-listed companies such as KPH is required to submit an Integrated Annual 

Corporate Governance Report (I-ACGR). The Company submitted its I-ACGR for year 2020 on 

30 June 2021. There was no Advisement Report in 2021 since there was no material transaction 

reaching 10%-of- total-assets limit. 

 
PART V - EXHIBITS AND SCHEDULES 

 

14 - Exhibits and Reports on SEC Form 17-C 

 

(a)  Exhibits – See accompanying Index to Exhibits 

   

(b) Reports on SEC Form 17-C – The Company has filed all reports on Form 17-C (Current 

Report) on matters needed in compliance with the SEC’s SRC during the fiscal year 

2021as follows: 

 
29 Jan 2021 Results of Board of Directors Meeting – 29 January 2021 

• Approval of KPH’s 2020 SEC From 17-A (Annual Report) and Audited Financial 

Statements (AFS) for the year ended 31 December 2020 and release of said AFS  

• Setting of the Annual Meeting of Stockholders and Record Date 

• Re-appointment of External Auditor 

23 Mar 2021 Resignation of Assistant Corporate Secretary  

05 Mar 2021 Details of the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting 

07 May 2021 Results of Board of Directors Meeting - 7 May 2021 

16 June 2021 Sale of Land Rights - 2 June 2021 

18 June 2021 

 

Results of Board of Directors Meeting – 18 June 2021 

• Approval of Directors’ Remuneration for 2020 

• Declaration of Cash Dividend - declaration of 10% or P0.10 per share cash dividend to all 

stockholders of record of the Company as of 8 July 2021 to be paid on or before 31 July 

2021 
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18 June 2021 

 

Results of the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting - 18 June 2021 

• Appointment of External Auditor, Isla Lipana & Co. (PwC) for the financial year 2021 

• Election of Directors for year 2021 - 2022 

• Approval of the Corporation’s Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31 

December 2020 

• Approval of Directors’ Annual Remuneration of P60,000 for 2020 

18 June 2021 

 

Results of Organizational Meeting – 18 June 2021 

• Election of Officers for the ensuing year 2021 - 2022 

• Appointment of chairman, members of the various committees and compliance 

officer/corporate information officer  

22 June 2021 Legal Proceedings Update 

20 Aug 2021 Share buy back 3,000 KPH shares 

6 Sep 2021 Share buy back of 20,000 KPH shares 

7 Sep 2021 Share buy back of 10,900 KPH shares 

10 Sep 2021 Share buy back of 3,800 KPH shares 

13 Sep 2021 Share buy back of 35,300 KPH Shares 

15 Sep 2021 Share buy back of 10,000 KPH and 10,000 KPHB share 

16 Sep 2021 Share buy back of 15,000 KPH and 15,000 KPHB shares 

17 Sep 2021 Share buy back of 200 KPH shares 

20 Sep 2021 Share buy back of 100 KPH shares 

21 Sep 2021 Share buy back of 8,000 KPHB shares 

7 Oct 2021 Share buy back of 10,000 KPH shares 

21 Oct 2021 Share buy back of 400 KPHB shares 

5 Nov 2021 Result of Board of Directors Meeting - 5 Nov 2021 – Buy back shares 

9 Nov 2021 Share buy back of 6,700 KPH shares 

19 Nov 2021 Share buy back of 1,200 KPHB shares 

23 Nov 2021 Share buy back of 20,000 KPH shares 

25 Nov 2021 Share buy back of 20,000 KPH shares 

1 Dec 2021 Share buy back of 30,000 KPH shares 

2 Dec 2021 Share buy back of 48,600 KPH shares 

3 Dec 2021 Share buy back of 1,500 KPH shares 

6 Dec 2021 Share buy back of 4,200 KPH shares 

13 Dec 2021 Share buy back of 2,000 KPHB shares 
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Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc. 
Sustainability Report 2021 
 
Contextual Information  
 

Disclosure Amount 

Name of Organization Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc. 

Location of Headquarters Unit 3-B Country Space 1 Buildings, 133 Sen. Gil Puyat Avenue, 
Salcedo Village, Makati City, Philippines  

Location of Operations Makati City and Province of Batangas 

Report Boundary: Legal entities (e.g. 
subsidiaries) included in this report 

This report covers Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc. (KPHI), the 
holding company, and its subsidiaries, namely, KPSI Property, 
Inc., Goodwealth Realty Development, Inc. and Goodsoil 
Marine Realty, Inc. 

Business Model, including Primary 
Activities, Brands, and Services 

Investment holdings and real estate 
  

Reporting Period 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021 

Highest Ranking Person responsible 
for this report 

Alan I. Claveria, President 

 
Materiality Process 
 

Explain how you applied the materiality principle (or the materiality process) in identifying your 
material topics. 

 
The assessment of material topics was guided by the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) principles for 
defining report content in terms of significant economic, environmental, and social impacts and 
information that would substantively influence the assessments and decisions of our stakeholders. The 
AccountAbility AA100 Standard 5-part materiality test was also used to identify material issues 
relevant to (1) direct short-term financial performance, (2) the company's ability to deliver on its 
strategies and policies, (3) best practice norms exhibited by peers in the industry, (4) stakeholder 
behavior and concerns, and (5) regulatory or non-regulatory societal norms.  
 

 
Sustainability Framework 
 
The organization has adopted the Sustainability Framework of the Keppel Group with its three strategic 
thrusts of (1) Responsible Business; (2) People and Community; and (3) Environmental Stewardship. 
 

RESPONSIBLE BUSINESS  PEOPLE AND COMMUNITY  
ENVIRONMENTAL 

STEWARDSHIP 
 
The sustainability of our business 
hinges on the adherence to the 
high standards of good corporate 
governance and the practice of 
prudent risk management. 
 
Our Board provides the strategic 
direction and oversight function 
while growth strategies are 
driven by the Management and 
supported by the employees 
under the risk-centric culture of 
the organization.  
 
 

  
People are the most important 
asset in the organization. We are 
committed to growing and 
nurturing our talent pool to ensure 
that our employees reach their full 
potential in a safe, secure and 
healthy work environment. 
 
We also take cognizance of the 
symbiotic relationship of our 
business and the community where 
we operate. We shall initiate, 
nourish and strengthen 
partnerships with our stakeholders 
as we both work towards 
sustainable and inclusive growth. 
 

  
As part of Keppel’s Vision 
2030, we are progressively 
aligning our portfolio towards 
sustainable urbanization 
solutions by evaluating its fit 
with Keppel’s Vision, Mission 
and ESG goals. 
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ECONOMIC 

 
Economic Performance  
Direct Economic Value Generated and Distributed  
 

Disclosure Amount  

(In PhP Mn) 

Units 

Direct economic value generated (revenue) ₱383.03 PhP 

Direct economic value distributed:   

a. Operating costs 16.36 PhP 

b. Employee wages and benefits 10.54 PhP 

c. Payments to suppliers, other operating costs 2.21 PhP 

d. Dividends given to stockholders and interest payments to loan providers 15.66 PhP 

e. Taxes given to government 4.28 PhP 

 

What is the impact and where does it 
occur? What is the organization’s 
involvement in the impact?  

 

Which stakeholders are 
affected? 

Management Approach 

In 2021, one eigth of the economic value 
generated by the organization was 
distributed to its stakeholders with a 
1:0.12 economic value generation to 
distribution ratio.  4% of the economic 
value generated was used to cover 
operating cost, 3% was paid as employees 
wages and benefits, 4%  was redistributed 
to stockholders as cash dividends and 1% 
went back to the government as taxes and 
fees. This redistribution of economic value 
by the organization enables its 
stakeholders to further regenerate and 
redistribute the economic value in the 
economic system. 
 

The employees, government 
and suppliers are impacted 
by the economic 
performance of the 
organization. 

The organization ensures 
that all transactions are 
properly recorded, audited 
and reported based on 
accounting policies and 
disclosures. Aside from the 
internal audit and oversight 
by the Audit and Risk 
Management Committee, 
an independent external 
auditor periodically 
examines the financial 
statements. 

What are the Risk/s Identified?  
 

Which stakeholders are 
affected? 
 

Management Approach 

The organization's revenue is derived 
mostly from rental income from the lease 
of its real estate properties and interest 
income from short-term loans extended 
to other parties.  
 
The COVID-19 pandemic affected the 
occupancy rate and rentals of KPHI and its 
subsidiary as tenants’ businesses were 
also impacted by low demand and supply 
chain challenges during the quarantine 
period. 
 
Most of these transactions are made with 
related parties to maximize the synergy 
within the group. The risk of corruption 

The employees, 
stockholders and the 
government stakeholders 
are affected by the manner 
by which the company 
addresses the COVID-19 
pandemic and by which 
related party transactions 
are being conducted by the 
organizations and how the 
same are managed and 
comply with regulatory 
requirements. 
 
 

Lease concessions through 
rebates were extended to a 
related party during the 
year in cognizance of the 
difficult business 
environment and its impact 
to the tenant’s operations. 
 
Also, during the pandemic, 
KPHI continued to be in 
close communication with 
its stakeholders during the 
different quarantine period 
and alert levels that 
includes, among others, it’s 
employees, lessees, 
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exists during the generation and 
distribution of these economic values. 
 

borrowers, industry 
regulators, suppliers and 
service providers. 
 
It is the policy of the 
organization to ensure that 
every related party 
transaction is made at arm’s 
length, the terms are fair, 
and they will inure to the 
best interest of the 
company, its shareholders, 
subsidiaries and affiliates 
and that they are compliant 
with legal and regulatory 
requirements.  The rental 
rebate has been properly 
studied and justified to be 
within market practices. 
 
The Keppel Group of 
Companies has set out anti-
bribery compliance 
framework, management 
systems and standards that 
the organization must 
adhere to in order to assure 
the ethical conduct of its 
business.  Whistle-blower 
and Insider Trading policies 
are also in place. Employees 
also undergo periodic anti-
bribery and corruption 
training to underscore the 
organization's commitment 
to a zero-tolerance 
approach towards bribery. 
 
In compliance to 
government proclamations, 
memorandum, and 
guidelines and in order to 
mitigate the risk of 
spreading COVID-19 in the 
workplace, KPHI has 
provided on-premise and 
off-premise work 
arrangement to ensure 
continued business 
operations. 
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What are the Opportunity/ies Identified?  
 

Which stakeholders are 
affected? 
 

Management Approach 

Due to the pandemic, business have 
scaled down their operations and their 
office space requirements.  There is 
opportunity to rent out the medium size 
office space of its subsidiary in this market 
environment. 
 
Third party tenants that are not related to 
the Keppel Group still holds an important 
role in the revenue mix of the 
organization. 
 

The employees, 
stockholders and the 
government stakeholders 
are impacted as the 
revenue sources 
determine the 
organization's ability to 
generate and distribute 
economic value. 
 

Non-exclusive marketing 
agreement were made with 
a real estate brokerage firm 
to reach a wider market for 
the vacant office space. 
 
The Management shall 
continue to maximize the 
lease of its properties and to 
maintain a healthy mix of 
revenue source between 
related and non-related 
parties. 
 

 
Climate-related risks and opportunities 
 
The organization shall develop its governance platform, strategies, risk management framework and 
method of measuring climate-related targets in the succeeding reporting cycle. It shall assess the risks, 
mitigation strategies and also business opportunities associated with climate change from the Board to 
the employee ranks. Considering the nature of its business as a holding company with a relatively small 
environmental footprint and a relatively small number of employees, the organization shall identify 
climate-related initiatives in the community where it operates with whom it can have a meaningful 
partnership in climate-related initiatives. 
 

Governance Strategy Risk Management Metrics and Targets 

Please refer to the above stated 
inputs. 

   

Recommended Disclosures 

Please refer to the above stated 
inputs. 

   

 
Procurement Practices 
 
Proportion of spending on local suppliers 
 

Disclosure Amount Units 

Percentage of procurement budget used for significant locations of 
operations that is spent on local suppliers  

100 % 

 

What is the impact and where does it 
occur? What is the organization’s 
involvement in the impact?  

 

Which stakeholders are 
affected? 

Management Approach 

As a rule, the organization taps the local 
supply chain, whenever applicable, for its 
operating requirements.  

The selection and awarding 
process entails interaction 
between the suppliers and 
the employees. 

Materials and equipment 
are procured from 
responsible and reputable 
vendors. The organization 
enforces and applies shall 
diligence, vetting and 
accreditation process for its 
suppliers.  
 



 5 

What are the Risk/s Identified?  
 

Which stakeholders are 
affected? 
 

Management Approach 

Although KPHI’s procurement expenditure 
is relatively small, there remains the risk 
of awarding contracts to suppliers who 
may not meet industry standards or may 
be non-compliant to government 
regulations, which may negatively impact 
on the reputation of the organization.  
Aside from not getting the best value for 
money, the risk of corruption exists in 
each procurement transaction.  

The choice of supplier and 
the conduct of the 
transaction between the 
supplier's representative 
and our employees will 
potentially have an impact 
to the sustainability of our 
transactions with the 
parties.   
 
Moreover, the company's 
brand and reputation will be 
at stake should there be 
impropriety in the 
procurement process and 
violations of government 
regulations by the vendor. 
 

The Company implements 
the Keppel Group’s 
"Supplier Code of Conduct" 
which sets out the standard 
of conduct that the supplier 
must adhere to.  
 
Part of the requirement for 
supplier accreditation is for 
the vendor to endorse 
Keppel’s supplier code of 
conduct. 

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified?  
 

Which stakeholders are 
affected? 
 

Management Approach 

The supplies needed by the organization 
can be sourced from Micro, Small and 
Medium Enterprises (MSME).  

MSMEs and their 
employees as well as the 
government are 
stakeholders in the supply 
chain.  

With MSMEs accounting for 
about 99% of business 
establishments in the 
Philippines, KPHI continues 
to prioritize local suppliers 
for its requirement so that 
there will be inclusive 
economic growth and also 
for economic value to be 
distributed back to this 
growing but vulnerable 
economic sector. 
 
In 2021, all purchases of 
COVID-19-related Personal 
Protective Equipment (PPE) 
and materials (i.e. face 
mask, face shield, alcohol, 
etc.) were sourced locally. 
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Anti-corruption 

Training on Anti-corruption Policies and Procedures 

 
Disclosure Quantity Units 
Percentage of employees to whom the organization’s anti- 

corruption policies and procedures have been communicated to 

100 % 

Percentage of business partners to whom the organization’s anti-
corruption policies and procedures have been communicated to 

100 
 

% 

Percentage of directors and management that have received 

anti-corruption training 

100 % 

Percentage of employees that have received anti-corruption 

training 

100 % 

 

What is the impact and where does it 
occur? What is the organization’s 
involvement in the impact?  
 

Which stakeholders are 
affected? 

Management Approach 

The Company considers integrity and 
accountability as part of its core values.  
Everyone is to act ethically and honestly, 
as everyone in the organization is 
responsible to all of its stakeholders. 
 
The Keppel Group's anti-bribery and 
corruption policies and procedures are 
communicated at the Board level, where 
the tone from the top is set, and at the 
employee level, where the front liners 
have operational interactions and 
transactions with outside parties.  It is 
imperative that all stakeholders 
understand the importance of conducting 
corruption-free transactions and in 
compliance with Keppel's Code of 
Conduct. 
 

Any violation of anti-bribery 
policy will impact on the 
entire Company and its 
stakeholders. 

The Company will continue 
with its strategy to prevent 
corruption, fraud, and other 
unethical or illegal conduct by 
providing regular training on 
the subject to its employees 
and implementing related 
policies to safeguard the 
organization and its 
stockholders' interest against 
corporate improprieties. 

What are the Risk/s Identified?  
 

Which stakeholders are 
affected? 
 

Management Approach 

The organization shall ensure that these 
anti-corruption policies and procedures 
are communicated to its suppliers to avoid 
exposing the Company's business, 
resources and reputation at risk. 
 
 

Aside from the suppliers, 
their acts and omissions will 
also impact and imperil the 
Company's ability to 
operate its business. 

There are no reported 
incidents of corruption during 
the reporting period.  All 
suppliers are informed of, 
required to abide by and 
declare acceptance of and 
adherence to Keppel's 
Supplier Code of Conduct. 
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What are the Opportunity/ies Identified?  Which stakeholders are 
affected? 

Management Approach 

The anti-bribery and corruption program 
of the Company will enable it to secure 
best value for its procurement 
requirements. 
 

The suppliers and 
employees in the 
procurement process are 
key players in the anti-
bribery and corruption 
program. 

Management will continue to 
with the training of its 
employees on policies with 
regards to anti-bribery and 
corruption and for vendors’ 
adherence to these policies. 
 

 

Incidents of Corruption 

 

Disclosure Quantity Units 
Number of incidents in which directors were removed or 
disciplined for corruption 

0 # 

Number of incidents in which employees were dismissed or 
disciplined for corruption 

0 # 

Number of incidents when contracts with business partners 
were terminated due to incidents of corruption 

0 # 

Number of incidents in which directors were removed or 
disciplined for corruption 

0 # 

 

What is the impact and where does it 
occur? What is the organization’s 
involvement in the impact?  

 

Which stakeholders are 
affected? 

Management Approach 

There are no reported incidents of 
corruption from the Board to the 
operations level. The organization has 
zero tolerance for fraud, bribery, 
corruption and violation of laws and 
regulations. 
 

All stakeholders (employees, 
customers, governments, 
shareholders and investors, 
suppliers and local 
communities) will be 
affected by the incidence  
(and even just the 
perception) of corruption in 
the organization. 
 

The Company has an annual 
anti-corruption awareness 
and training.  A Whistle 
Blower policy is also in place. 

What are the Risk/s Identified?  
 

Which stakeholders are 
affected? 
 

Management Approach 

The risk of corruption is present whenever 
the members of the organization interacts 
with its stakeholders. 
 

Same as above. Same as above. 

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified?  Which stakeholders are 
affected? 
 

Management Approach 

Professionalism, integrity and good 
governance guide the organization's 
business philosophy.  

Same as above. The same level of 
professionalism and ethical 
tenets shall be present in all 
instances of the organization's 
interaction with its 
stakeholders. 
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ECONOMIC 

ENVIRONMENT 

 
Resource Management 
 
Energy consumption within the organization: 
 

Disclosure Quantity Units 
Energy consumption (renewable sources) 0 GJ 

Energy consumption (gasoline) 0 GJ 

Energy consumption (LPG)  0 GJ 

Energy consumption (diesel) 0 GJ 

Energy consumption (electricity)  21,924 kWh 

 
 
The following sections are not applicable due the nature of the business and size of operation.  
 
Reduction of energy consumption 
 
Water consumption within the organization 
 
Materials used by the organization 
 
Ecosystems and biodiversity (whether in upland/watershed or coastal/marine) 
 
 
Environmental impact management 
 
Air Emissions 
 
GHG 
 
Air pollutants 
 
 

Solid and Hazardous Wastes 
 
Solid Waste 
 
Hazardous Waste 
 
Effluents 
 
 

Environmental compliance 
 
Non-compliance with Environmental Laws and Regulations 
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SOCIAL 

 

Employee Management 
 
Employee Hiring and Benefits 
 
Employee data 
 

Disclosure Quantity Units 

Total number of employees 8    # 

a. Number of female employees 5 # 

b. Number of male employees 3 # 

Attrition rate 14% rate 

Ratio of lowest paid employee against minimum wage 1.15:1.00 ratio 

 

Employee benefits 

 

List of Benefits Availed Y/N % of female 
employees who 
availed for the 
year 

% of male 
employees who 
availed for the 
year 

SSS Y 0% 0% 

PhilHealth Y 0% 33% 

Pag-IBIG Y 20% 33% 

Parental leave    

• Maternity leave Y 0% N/A 

• Paternity leave Y N/A 0% 

• Solo parent leave Y 0% 

Vacation leave Y 100% 100% 

Sick leave Y 100% 100% 

Medical benefits (aside from 

PhilHealth) 
Y 100% 100% 

Housing assistance (aside from Pag-IBIG) N N/A N/A 

Retirement fund (aside from SSS) Y 20% 0% 

Further education support (i.e. Educ. loan) Y 20% 33% 

Company stock options N N/A N/A 

Telecommuting N N/A N/A 

Flexible-working Hours N 100% 100% 

(Others) 

Medical Reimbursement 
N N/A N/A 

 
What is the impact and where does it occur? What is the 
organization’s involvement in the impact?  

 

Management Approach 

The organization provides fair employment benefits with 
3% of the economic value generated during the reporting 
period redistributed as employees’ wages and benefit. 
 
A corporate wellness program continues to be 
implemented that includes an annual physical exam for all 

The Company shall ensure compliance with 
labor and employment laws.  
 
It shall continue to monitor the impact and 
measure the effectiveness of the corporate 
wellness program by reviewing metrics such 
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employees, a vaccination campaign to employees and 
family members and sharing of COVID-19 and health alerts 
from a related party. 
  

as sick leave and medical reimbursements 
levels. 
 
It shall continue to have dialogues with its 
employees with regards to wages, 
performance review and the strategic 
direction of the organization.  Talent, 
performance and training review and 
monitoring are included under the Workday 
system for the employees.  
 

What are the Risk/s Identified?  
 

Management Approach 

The Company’s talent pool includes contingent workers 
whose age are the past retirement age.  Majority of its 
employees now qualifies for early retirement and a number 
of the workforce are nearing the age of compulsory 
retirement.  At the other end of the spectrum are 
Millennials.  With this talent mix comes the risk employee 
flight and a "shallow bench" problem that may lead to 
disruption in the business operations. 
 

The Management reviews succession 
planning and employee retention strategy 
while being mindful of the mindset 
employees belonging to different 
generations.  It shall also consider tapping 
the talent pool of other companies under 
the Keppel Group.   
 
The Company shall also work towards a 
leaner and asset light organization as part of 
Keppel’s strategy for its Vision 2030. 
 

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified?  Management Approach 
 

Other Keppel companies in the Philippines have a large 
talent pool that the company can tap to fill in gaps in its 
workforce. 
 

Management reaches out to other Keppel 
business units for excess personnel in their 
manpower resources that can be 
transferred or stationed to the company on 
a short-term or permanent basis should the 
need arise. 

 

 
 

Employee Training and Development 

 
Disclosure Quantity Units 

Total training hours provided to employees 398.75  hours 

a. Female employees 234.75 hours 

b. Male employees 164.00 hours 

Average training hours provided to employees 49.84 hours/employee 

a. Female employees 29.34 hours/employee 

b. Male employees 20.50 hours/employee 

 
What is the impact and where does it occur? What is the 
organization’s involvement in the impact?  

 

Management Approach 

"People-Centredness" is one Keppel's 8 core values. This 
underscores the basic tenet that people are one of the key 
drivers to the sustainability of the business.  The 
organization continues to invest in training and 
development programs for its employees and remains 
committed to nurturing an efficient, well-trained and well-

The Company is committed to growing and 
nurturing its talent pool to ensure that 
employees reach their full potential by 
improving their competency through 
continuous training and development in 
their respective field.  
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informed team.   
 
Employees undergo annual e-training on anti-Bribery and 
other Keppel Group policies.  They are also required to 
provide an annual declaration of conflict of interest.   
 
 
 

 
During the pandemic, the Keppel Group 
offered a variety of web-based seminars 
that include discussions on working and 
personal wellness under the new normal. 
 
The Management continues to identify the 
training needs of its employees vis-a-vis the 
strategic direction of the Company and to 
provide the necessary programs to fill in 
those training gaps so as to ensure that our 
employees also grow together with the 
business.  The Company was able to achieve 
an average of 49.84 training hours per 
employee during the period. 
 

What are the Risk/s Identified?  
 

Management Approach 

A lack of awareness and inadequate training may 
potentially expose the organization to financial reporting 
risk and occupational health and safety risk. 

The Management provides courses and 
information on the latest regulatory 
developments, industry standards and 
practices with regular updates from its 
external auditors and legal counsels to 
ensure proper recognition, treatment, 
recording and disclosure of financial 
transactions in compliance with the 
regulatory environment. 
 
The Company shares occupational health 
and safety procedures from a related 
company that is relevant to the office 
environment with regular safety alerts and 
bulletins posted on the office bulletin board 
and shared through e-mail or WhatsApp.   
 
A large part of the alerts pertains to COVID-
19 and how to minimize the risk of 
contracting and spreading this virus during 
this pandemic.   
 
It shall continue to identify workplace 
hazards and risks with constant dialogues  
with and reminders for the employees. 
 
The employees have designated key roles in 
case of an emergency in the office building.  
Prior to the pandemic, the office takes part 
in the scheduled earthquake, fire and 
evacuation drills conducted by the building 
administration in partnership with the local 
police and fire departments. 
 

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified?  Management Approach 
 

Online training presents benefits to companies as it 
provides easy access to a wide-array of subject matter 
experts at reduced cost.  There is also better employee 

With the travel restriction brought about by 
COVID-19 community quarantine protocols 
imposed by the government and the 
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productivity as they need not leave the office and use up 
time traveling to the training venue.   
 

adopted home-based and office-based work 
arrangement combination, the Company 
has turned to online learning as the 
preferred and safest mode of training for 
the organization during the pandemic.  
 

 
Labor-Management Relations 

 
This section is not applicable due the nature of the business and size of operation.  
 
Diversity and Equal Opportunity 
 

Disclosure Quantity Units 
% of female workers in the workforce 62.50% % 

% of male workers in the workforce 37.50% % 

Number of employees from indigenous communities 

and/or vulnerable sector * 

1 # 

* Vulnerable sector includes, elderly, persons with disabilities, vulnerable women, refugees, migrants, 
internally displaced persons, people living with HIV and other diseases, solo parents, and the poor or 
the base of the pyramid (BOP; Class D and E).  

 

What is the impact and where does it occur? What is the 
organization’s involvement in the impact?  

 

Management Approach 

Our employment statistic shows gender diversity with 
higher representation of women in the workforce. No 
incidence of discrimination has been reported during the 
reporting period.  
 
A female Internal Auditor has been hired during the 
reporting period.  During the hiring and selection process, 
the organization gave equal opportunity to qualified 
applicants regardless of age, gender, race, religion, social or 
marital status, political belief or physical disability.   
 
Employees are provided with an equal opportunity for 
training and development for them to grow to their full 
potential.  Promotion, recognition and compensation and 
other conditions of employment are based on merits. 
 

The organization's hiring policies ensure 

equal employment opportunities for all 

with due consideration to diversity and 

inclusion.  

 

The company also abides by the Keppel 

Group's Corporate Statement on Human 

Rights.  The statement can be accessed at 

this link: 

<https://www.kepcorp.com/en/file/sustain

ability/our-focus-areas/keppel-group-

corporate-statement-on-human-rights.pdf> 

 

 

 

What are the Risk/s Identified?  
 

Management Approach 

Non-compliance with laws and regulations will not only 
have a significant financial impact but can also potentially 
damage the reputation of the organization. 

The organization closely monitors 
developments in the local law and 
regulations to ensure that its business and 
operations are fully compliant. 
 

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified?  Management Approach 

Diversity in the workplace creates a creative and productive 
environment.   
 

The organization continues to encourage 
diversity in its ranks and provide equal 
opportunity in its hiring process. 
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Workplace Conditions, Labor Standards, and Human Rights 
 
Occupational Health and Safety 
 

Disclosure Quantity Units 
Safe Man-Hours 17,800 Man-hours 

No. of work-related injuries 0 # 

No. of work-related fatalities 0 # 

No. of work-related ill-health 0 # 

No. of safety drills 0 # 

 

What is the impact and where does it occur? What is the 
organization’s involvement in the impact?  

 

Management Approach 

The organization recorded 17,800 safe man-hours without 
lost time incident during the reporting period.  There were 
no recorded incidents or injuries at the workplace.  
 

The company will continue to nurture an 
incident-free workplace where safety is 
everyone's responsibility.  
 

What are the Risk/s Identified?  
 

Management Approach 

A work environment that is unsafe and unhealthy will 
unduly expose employees to injuries or illnesses that can 
result to medical cost, absenteeism, lower productivity and 
quality of service and low morale. 
 

The organization abides by Keppel's 5 key 
safety principles: (1) Every incident is 
preventable. (2) Health, Safety & 
Environment (HSE) is an integral part of our 
business. (3) HSE is a line responsibility. (4) 
Everyone is empowered to stop any unsafe 
work. (5) A strong safety culture is achieved 
through teamwork. 
 

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified?  Management Approach 
 

Although most of the work is done while sitting on a chair, 
there are still hazards that pose danger to one's life and 
limb in the office with many of these injuries preventable. 
 

The organization shall continue with its 
safety information campaign that identifies 
hazards present in the office environment. 

 
Labor Laws and Human Rights 
 

Disclosure Quantity Units 
No. of legal actions or employees' grievances involving 
forced or child labor 

0 # 

 
Do you have policies that explicitly disallows violations of labor laws and human rights (e.g. harassment, 
bullying) in the workplace?  Yes. 
 

Topic Y/N If Yes, cite reference in the company 
policy 

Forced Labor Y Keppel Group's Corporate Statement on Human 
Rights. The statement can be accessed at this link: 

<https://www.kepcorp.com/en/file/sustainability/
our-focus-areas/keppel-group-corporate-

statement-on-human-rights.pdf>  

Child Labor Y As above 

Human Rights Y As above 
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What is the impact and where does it occur? 
What is the organization’s involvement in the 
impact?  

 

Management Approach 

There is no forced or child labor or any human 
rights violations in the organization.  
 

The Company shall continue to provide a 
harmonious and ethical work environment that is 
conducive to personal and professional growth. 
 

What are the Risk/s Identified?  
 

Management Approach 

Human rights violations and infraction of labor 
laws have grave legal consequences and may cause 
irreparable damage to the company's brand and 
reputation.   

All directors and employees as well as the 
organization's third party associates shall abide with 
Keppel's Code of Conduct and uphold Keppel's 
Statements on Human Rights. 
 

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified?  Management Approach 

The organization shall continue to guard against 
labor and human rights violation in the workplace. 
 

Defined labor and human rights standards to which 
all employees are entitled will underscore the 
company's commitment towards a fair and just 
workplace. 
 

 

Supply Chain Management 
 
Do you have a supplier accreditation policy? If yes, please attach the policy or link to the policy:  
 
The organization is using vendors that have already been accredited by related party(ies). In this regard, 
the Company has formally adapted these policies and procedures and requires new suppliers and 
contractors to go through the formal process of assessment and accreditation of suppliers as well as an 
evaluation of supplier performance. 
 
Do you consider the following sustainability topics when accrediting suppliers?  
 
The following topics shall be taken into consideration, where applicable, when accrediting supplier. 
 

Topic Y/N If Yes, cite reference in the supplier policy 
Environmental performance N Please refer to response in the previous question. 

Forced Labor N  

Child Labor N  

Human Rights N  

Bribery and corruption N  

 

What is the impact and where does it occur? What is the 
organization’s involvement in the impact?  

 

Management Approach 

A formal supplier accreditation policy and procedure has 
been implemented in the organization during the reporting 
period.   
 

This shall guide the Company in the 
selection of suppliers of goods and services 
moving forward. 
 

What are the Risk/s Identified?  
 

Management Approach 

Unqualified or dubious suppliers and contractors may be 
awarded supply contracts and deliver goods and services 
with poor quality resulting to costly rework, damage or 
delay to the business operations.  
 

The company has a formal supplier 
accreditation policy and supplier 
performance evaluation in place. 
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What are the Opportunity/ies Identified?  Management Approach 

The company evaluates and accredits suppliers based on 
the policy. 
 

Same as above. 

 

Relationship with Community 
 
Significant Impacts on Local Communities 
 
This section is not applicable due the nature of the business and size of operation.  

 
Customer Management 
 
Customer Satisfaction 
 

Disclosure Score Did a third party conduct the 

customer satisfaction study (Y/N)?  
Customer satisfaction The organization has 

not yet conducted a 
customer satisfaction 
survey. 
 

No 

 
What is the impact and where does it occur? What is the 
organization’s involvement in the impact?  

 

Management Approach 

The organization leases office space and real estate to other 
Keppel companies and to external parties. It is responsible 
for managing the properties and making sure that the 
tenants are able to enjoy the use of the leased premises.  
 

Interactions with tenant will continue on a 
regular basis and shall be conducted in a 
professional manner.   
 
The Management shall continue to scope 
trends and issues in the real estate market 
to remain competitive and updated. 
 
In 2021, the Company continued to extend 
lease concessions in the form of rental 
rebates to tenants whose business have 
been impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic. 
 

What are the Risk/s Identified?  
 

Management Approach 

A customer who is not happy with the organization's 
services may bring its business elsewhere leading to loss of 
revenue due to tenant attrition.   
 

As property owner and lessor, the 
organization continues to engage with its 
tenant to find out any concerns relating to 
the leased premises so as to keep these 
tenants satisfied and encourage them to 
renew their lease and go for long-term 
leases. 
 
The planned customer satisfaction survey 
has been deferred to the next reporting 
period due to the COVID-19 pandemic.  It 
will help determine areas for improvement 
and for the company to be more responsive 
to the tenant's concern and complaint, if 
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any. 
 
The Company continues to engage with its 
tenants to determine their concerns during 
the pandemic period which resulted to the 
extension of the lease rebates during the 
year. 
 

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified?  Management Approach 

The organization will be in a better position to understand 
the expectations and perceptions of its clientele with the 
planned customer survey. 

The Management will draw up the tenant 
retention plan based on the results and 
takeaways from the survey. 

 

 
Health and Safety 
 

Disclosure Quantity Units 
No. of substantiated complaints on product or 
service health and safety* 

0 # 

No. of complaints addressed 0 # 
*Substantiated complaints include complaints from customers that went through the organization’s  

formal communication channels and grievance mechanisms as well as complaints that were lodged to 

and acted upon by government agencies.  
 

What is the impact and where does it occur? What is the 
organization’s involvement in the impact?  

 

Management Approach 

There has been no complaints about the company's 
services or on matters relating to health and safety in the 
workplace.  The organization is committed to provide an 
incident-free workplace and to prevent injury and ill health 
to our stakeholders.  

Safety is among the core values at Keppel. 
The organization shall conduct its business 
in a manner that values and protects the 
safety of its employees, other people who 
are involved in its operations, customers 
and the public. It shall strive to prevent all 
accidents, injuries and occupational 
illnesses through safety information 
campaigns. It shall also institute a program 
for a good customer experience to ensure 
that the individual's experience during all 
points of contact shall also match the 
customer's expectation.  
 

What are the Risk/s Identified?  
 

Management Approach 

The lack of a safety and health policies and measures may 
lead to incidence of injury and ill health to the employees 
and other stakeholders. 

The organization shall adopt and formalize 
the safety and health policies of the Keppel 
Group in its workplace to underscore its 
commitment of ensuring an incident-free 
workplace and to prevent injury and ill 
health to its stakeholders. 
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What are the Opportunity/ies Identified?  Management Approach 

The proposed formal adoption of health, safety and 
customer relations policies and program for a good 
customer experience will benefit of the stakeholders and 
ensure repeat transactions from happy customers and 
support from employees working in a safe and healthy 
environment.  
 

Same as above. 

 
Marketing and labeling 
 
This section is not applicable due the nature of the business and size of operation.  

 
Customer privacy 
 

Disclosure Quantity Units 
No. of substantiated complaints on customer privacy* 0 # 

No. of complaints addressed 0 # 

No. of customers, users and account holders whose 
information is used for secondary purposes 

0 # 

* Substantiated complaints include complaints from customers that went through the organization’s 
formal communication channels and grievance mechanisms as well as complaints that were lodged to 
and acted upon by government agencies.  

 
What is the impact and where does it occur? What is the 
organization’s involvement in the impact?  

 

Management Approach 

The organization transacts with corporate legal entities and 
individuals for its investment and real estate transactions 
that requires individuals to provide personal data. 
 

The organization shall abide by the Data 
Privacy Act of 2012 (R.A. 10173) and require 
its employees to undergo training to 
familiarize themselves with the regulations 
and the need to protect personal data 
provided by customers and other 
stakeholders. 
 

What are the Risk/s Identified?  
 

Management Approach 

Failure to protect the rights of individuals and exercise the 
obligations of organizations with respect to the collection, 
storage, use, disclosure, retention, and disposal of personal 
data may potentially lead to complaints from data subjects, 
investigations by the National Privacy Commission (NPC) 
and imposition of penalty thereby also putting the 
reputation of the organization at risk. 
 

In compliance with the NPC directive under 
R.A. 10173, the organization shall draw up a 
Privacy Management Program and Privacy 
Manual during the next reporting period. 

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified?  Management Approach 
 

The proposed Privacy Management Program will lead to 
better identification of privacy and data protection risks 
and controls throughout the data lifecycle. 
 

The organization shall conduct a privacy risk 
assessment and provide recommendations 
on its existing organizational, physical, 
technical as well as legal measures for data 
privacy vis-a-vis the requirements of the 
Data Privacy Act, its Implementing Rules 
and Regulations and related 
memorandums. 
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Data Security 
 

Disclosure Quantity Units 
No. of data breaches, including leaks, thefts and losses of 

data 

0 # 

 
What is the impact and where does it occur? What is the 
organization’s involvement in the impact?  

 

Management Approach 

Information technology is a tool used in every aspect of 
business operations.  Aside from bringing value to the 
organization, it also brings with it potential risks and 
security threats that need to be adequately mitigated and 
properly addressed.  Business data captured and stored in 
the system are vulnerable to data breach, hacks, theft and 
losses in the absence of appropriate levels of security 
controls. 
 

The organization is guided by the Keppel 
Group's "End User Computing Policy" that 
promotes responsible use of computing 
resources and specifies the appropriate and 
consistent levels of security controls across 
its computing environment. 
 

What are the Risk/s Identified?  
 

Management Approach 

Data-breach risk, data management and data privacy risk 
are present whenever information technology is used in the 
organization.  
 

The company shall continue to provide 
annual training and periodic reminders on 
data security, data management and data 
privacy. 
 
During the period, the FireEye anti-malware 
program was installed into the KPHI 
computers. 
 

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified?  Management Approach 
 

The organization will continue to identify weak links in the 
system and to be vigilant in safeguarding its data. 

Due to its small organization, the company 
will tap and leverage on the expertise of IT 
experts within the Keppel Group. 
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UN SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT GOALS 
 
Product or Service Contributions to UN SDGs 
 
Key products and services and its contribution to sustainable development. 
 
As a holding company, it generates economic value from the lease of its real estate properties and 
interest income from loans extended to other parties.  How these activities contribute to selected UN 
Sustainable Goals are shown in the table below. 

 
Strategic 
Thrust 

Material Issues SDGs Approach Societal Value / 
Contribution to 
UN SDGs 

Potential 
Negative 
Impact of 
Contribution 

Management 
Approach to 
Negative 
Impact 

Sustaining 
Growth 
 

Corporate 
Governance 
 
Risk 
Management 
 
 

 
 
 

Professionalism, 
integrity and 
good governance 
guide KPHI's 
business 
philosophy. 
 
The organization 
ensures that all 
transactions are 
fair, generates 
value for its 
stakeholders and 
complies  
with legal and 
regulatory 
requirements. 
 

The value 
generated by 
the operations 
are distributed 
back as 
employment 
opportunities, 
business for 
suppliers and 
taxes for the 
government. 
 

The risk of 
corruption is 
present 
whenever the 
members of 
the 
organization 
interacts with 
its 
stakeholders. 
 

The 
organization 
has zero 
tolerance for 
fraud, bribery, 
corruption and 
violation of 
laws and 
regulations. 
Safeguard 
measures and 
reporting 
mechanisms 
are in place. 
 

Empowering 
Lives 
 

Occupational 
Safety & 
Health 
 
Labor 
Practices, 
Talent 
Management 

& Human 
Rights 
 

 
 

 

The company 
nurtures a safe 
and healthy 
workplace 
imbibed with a 
safety culture and 
mindset.  
 

Our hiring 
policies ensures 
equal 
employment 
opportunities for 
all such that 
there will be 
diversity and 
inclusion in the 
workplace. 
 

KPHI has 
achieved zero 
lost time 
incidents with 
no work-related 
injury or 
illnesses.  
 

Safety is one of 
Keppel’s core 
values.  Our 
policies and 
procedures are 
focused on 
ensuring safety 
in the entire 
organization.  

An unsafe and 
unhealthy 
office 
environment 
may expose 
employees to 
work and 
health hazards. 

 

It shall strictly 
abide by the 
Keppel Group's 
5 key safety 
principles and 
corporate 
statement on 
human rights. 

Nurturing 
Communities 
 

Community 
Development 

 
 

 

The organization 
and the 
communities 
where it operates 
should grow 
together through 
collaborative 
partnership 
towards 
sustainable 
development. 
 

The company 
remains 
steadfast in its 
commitment to 
have inclusive 
partnership with 
its stakeholders 
driven by the 
common vision 
of a better life 
for individuals 
and a healthy 
environment. 
 

Members of 
vulnerable 
sectors run the 
risk of being 
excluded from 
growth. 

The company 
shall seek out 
organizations 
and forge 
partnership 
with them for 
community 
development 
initiatives. 

 
AIC: KPHI Sustainability Report 2021 (2.18.22 1325H).docx 
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